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DEAD‐BEAT DAD OR DEAD‐BEAT JUSTICE SYSTEM 

CHRIS MARSHALL 
1) My name is Chris Marshall and I am proud 59 year old 4th generation Canadian whose family has lived in North Battleford Saskatchewan for over 100 years. I am 

half English and Half Ukrainian.  I used to be proud to be Canadian until I went to divorce court. I have been a used car Salesman in Vancouver for the last 34 years 
and I have dealt with some of the sleaziest and slimiest people you could ever imagine. I have never dealt with anyone sleazier or slimier than the following Judges, 
Lawyers, Prosecutors and Police that I am about to tell you about. 

WOLF 
2) If I have to go back to prison on September 17, 2019, and share a jail cell with some guy named Wolf again, who has fetal alcohol syndrome, and wants to fight 

every night at 4 am, then I am going to scream and yell as loud as I can. Welcome to my nightmare in British Columbia’s Dead‐Beat Justice System. But don’t take my 
word for it. Let’s ask an Ottawa think tank.                            

MCDONALD LAURIER INSTITUTE 
3) In 2018 I read an article in the Vancouver Province titled “BC Justice System under Performs” by a renowned Ottawa think tank called the McDonald Laurier 

Institute. This study recently gave the British Columbia Justice System a D Grade when it comes to access to fairness in the Justice System. The report found 
confidence in the police and the courts ranked well below average. The McDonald Laurie institute is a highly respected Canadian think tank that is named after 
Canada’s first two Prime Ministers. The B.C. Justice system ranked 2nd last of all Canadian Provinces. The only province that had a worse rating was Manitoba. I 
want to tell fellow Canadians what a D Grade British Columbia Justice System did to me and my family.   

NOBODY CARES 
4) I dedicate my story to the 40% of fathers who go to divorce court and never see their children again. I dedicate my story to the 3,000 divorced dads who commit 

suicide every year because of Canada’s Family Justice System. I dedicate my story to the 30 children who are murdered every year by their parents in Canada. These 
Canadian Parents are pushed over the edge by Canada’s Abusive and Corrupt Family Justice System and they need our support. Maybe my story will give inspiration 
to the millions of Canadian Families who are abused and manipulated by Canada’s deadbeat Family Justice System.                   

JUDICIAL HELL CANADIAN STYLE 
5) What would you do if a Supreme Court Judge told you to stop trying to see your child or it will kill you? 
6) What would you do if a court ordered Psychiatrists told you that if your ex‐wife and her lawyer did not want you to see your child that you should find another 

woman and have another baby.  
I FOUGHT THE LAW AND THE LAW WON. 

7) From 2006 to 2013 I used to be the most outspoken activist parent fighting the Canadian Justice System for their right to see their children. I used to own the largest 
used car dealership in Vancouver called CC Motors and I used it as my stage to fight for Fathers 4 Justice. I made my story public and embarrassed a lot of judges in 
Alberta by documenting there comments and actions on my blog afathersstory.ca. Needless to say the Justice System does not like me because I have no intention 
of finding another woman and having another baby. I also have no intention of letting a D grade British Columbia Justice System put me in Jail for the 7th time, or 
destroy me financially again without a fight. So I have decided to put my blog back up. It is the only protection that I have against Judicial Corruption, Manipulation 
and Extortion by British Columbia’s D grade Justice System. This is the last thing that I want to do. I am sure it will not help me, and the bastards will probably put 
me in jail for a longer time. But at least the people of Vancouver will know my story.  

KEEP HIM BROKE AND THREATEN HIM WITH PRISON 
8) I am a used car salesman with no driver’s licence. If I sit in the driver’s seat of a car I will go to jail. If I put a dealer plate on the back of a car, I will go to jail. If I put a 

customer’s plates on a car, I will go to jail. That is what my Probation Officer tells me. I have already been to jail 6 times. I have no criminal record and I am 
scheduled to go to Court on September 17th 2019 and I am facing mandatory prison sentence. I am pleading not guilty. I have retained my lawyer’s lawyer because 
Karma the D Grade Homicide cop thinks I am a hit man for the Hells Angels and Lawyer Dan Barker. 

KARMA’S A BITCH 
9) In August 2015 a Homicide detective by the name of Karma approached me and asked “are you Chris Marshall.” I said yes. Karma the cop said. “I’ve been looking for 

you.” I was sitting at a park bench with a friend on Beach Avenue eating a steak and drinking a beer. Karma the cop from homicide then accused me of being a hit 
man for Lawyer Dan Barker and the Hells Angels. She said that she had a report that I had a shotgun in my motorhome and I was going to kill a disgruntled client of 
Lawyer Dan Barkers. I told Karma the cop that her statement was ridiculous. I asked Karma the homicide cop if she wanted to look in my motorhome for a gun. 
Karna said no.  I said what you do want from me. Karma said she wanted me to make a statement as to this allegation. I told Karma the cop that lawyer Dan Barker 
was my friend and he is representing me in a civil case against Air Canada Pilot Captain Robert Cortens who had stolen my car lot and $100,000 of my money. Karma 
then stated that she wanted to talk to lawyer Dan Barker about this murder for hire allegation, but he would not answer her calls. I said he will answer my call. So I 
called Dan and passed the phone to Karma. When Karma the cop got off the phone she looked at me with anger in her eyes. Karma the cop stated that she knew 
that my driver’s licence had been taken away by Family Maintenance Enforcement (FMEP). Karma asked me how my motorhome got to Beach Avenue. I told her 
that my friend who I was sitting with drove it here. Karma said she did not believe me and said she was confiscated my motorhome for 7 days. I told Karma that this 
was my home and if she took my motorhome I would be homeless. Karma the cop told me to go sleep at Tim Hortons. Karma the cop then stated that Lawyer Dam 
Barker said he would take my dog Bentley for the week but not me, and she laughed. She then wrote me a ticket for driving while prohibited. I asked Karma the cop, 
“How can you write me a motor vehicle ticket when I am not driving or even sitting in a car.” Karma told me there was nothing I could do about it and if I ever got 
caught driving I would go directly to jail. They say Karma’s a Bitch. What goes around comes around. I wonder what Lawyer Dan Barker said to Karma the cop.  

MADAME JUSTICE WATCHUK 
10) On May 24, 2016 Madam Justice Watchuk rendered her Reasons for Judgement pertaining to Chris Marshall suing Air Canada Pilot Captain Robert Cortens. Mr. 

Cortens stole Mr. Marshall’s car lot and $100,000 of his money. It took a five day trial at a cost of $50,000 and my lawyer proved this in a court of law. I gave Lawyer 
Dan Barker every dime I made in an effort to get Justice against Air Canada pilot Captain Robert Cortens.  Lawyer Dan Barker proved in court as stated in Madame 
Justice Watchuks reasons for Judgement that Mr. Cortens stole Mr. Marshall’s business and $100,000 of his money. Unbelievably Supreme Court Judge Madame 
Justice Watchuk stated in her reasons for judgement that she could not decide how much money to give me until she heard how the thief did running my business 
with my money. I win the case but I get nothing. My lawyer Dan Barker said in 32 years of practicing law in Vancouver he has never heard of a judge coming back 
with a decision with no monetary Judgement. It took me 2 and half years to go to trial, and it took Madame Justice Watchuk eight and half months to make this 
brilliant decision. After the reasons for Judgement were made public I found out that Mr. Cortens filed for Bankruptcy. He knew he lost the case. Apparently he lost 
$350,000 and amalgamated his debts with the Royal Bank. Mr. Cortens makes $250,000 a year as an airline Pilot and has a 1.6 million dollar pension plan with Air 
Canada.  Everyone gets paid back but me. That is not Justice. That is an incompetent Judge who makes $340,000 a year from Canadians. I know my mother Nadia 
Stratychuk would turn over in her grave knowing a fellow Ukrainian screwed her son out of his money and his business. Shame on you Justice Watchuk. You can 
read Madame Justice Watchuks $50,000 Reason for Judgement on my Blog. Due to the length and cost of this joke of a Judge and joke of a Justice System I fell 
behind in child support to my millionaire ex‐wife. Which brings me to my next legal nightmare with British Columbia’s D Grade Family Justice System.                   

CHANTEL MATHERS (FMEP) 
11) On April 1 2015 I turned 55 years old. My millionaire ex‐wife Karin flew in from Hawaii with my 13 year old son. It was my weekend access with my son. I burst into 

tears and begged Karin to tell [FMEP] to give me back my driver’s licence. Karin told me that [FMEP] told her that taking away my driver’s licence was the only way 
that they could get me to pay my child support. I told Karin that taking away my driver’s licence and my ability to make a living was the only way that I could never 
pay her back. Karin refused to help and listened to (FMEP) recommendation. I was behind in child support to my ex‐wife by $10,000. Chantel Mathers of Family 
Maintenance Enforcement [FMEP] took away my Driver’s licence, Passport, shut down my Bank account, and sent letters to 18 car dealerships calling me a dead 
beat dad every month. I took [FMEP] to court 2 times to try and get my driver’s licence back. [FMEP] has their own court room and their own Judges and their own 
brand of D Grade Justice. The first time I went to court I told Madam Justice Bakon my story and asked her to order [FMEP] to give back my driver’s licence. I told 
her that I was a self‐employed used car salesman in Vancouver for the last 30 years and without a driver’s licence I could not make a living and support my family or 
myself. Madame Justice Bakon told me that she would not give me back my driver’s licence if I was self‐employed. It is pretty hard to get a job selling cars when you 
don’t have a drivers licence. Who is going to hire you with the liability risk?  

MADAME JUSTICE BAKON 
12) In January 2016 I returned to Court for the 2nd time to ask a Judge to overturn Chantel Mathers of [FMEP] refusal to give me back my driver’s licence.  I was $15,000 

behind in child support at this time. I got Madame Justice Bakon again. I told Madame Justice Bakon that I was no longer self‐employed and I was working with 
another guy who would pay me. I told Justice Bakon that I offered to give Chantel Mathers of [FMEP] my $10,000 inheritance from my mother’s death if they would 
let me have my driver’s licence back. I told Justice Bakon that my lawyer Dan Barker wrote a letter stating that any money collected from my court case against 
Robert Cortens that [FMEP] would be 1st in line to collect my child support arears.  Chantel Mathers of [FMEP] said that she would not let me have my driver’s 
licence back unless I paid the full $15,000 in arrears. Chantel Mathers said that $3,000 of that money was (FMEP’S) fee for collecting the child support and they 
would not give it back unless they got their money. I told Chantel Mathers that my millionaire ex‐wife would like to have my $10,000 inheritance. Chantel 



responded, “I don’t care what your ex‐wife wants. We want our $3,000 or you can’t have your driver’s licence back.” I asked Madam Justice Bakon to order (FMEP) 
to give me back my driver’s licence based on these facts. Madam Justice Bakon responded,” There is nothing I can do to help you to get your driver’s licence back 
Mr. Marshall.” I said,” So why am I coming to court.” Madam Justice Bakon responded by saying, (“I DON’T KNOW”.) What kind of an answer is that Madame Justice 
Bakon? You come to court and collect your $340,000 a year of tax payer’s money and do nothing. The British Columbia government pays 14 million dollars a year to 
(FMEP) to collect child support. This is an American company that pays Chantel Mather’s salary and has more power than the CRA and apparently our Justice 
system. You people are supposed to help Canadian families collect child support. Instead all you do is destroy lives and abuse families so you can collect your $3,000 
fee from me and every parent that falls behind in child support. You take a hammer away from a carpenter, how is he supposed to make a living. You take a drivers 
licence from a car salesman, and he can’t make a living. I went from making more money than god, God by the way is a Supreme Court Judge who makes $340,000 a 
year, to going on welfare and becoming homeless. Great job Justice Bakon and Chantel Mathers of (FMEP). Your incompetence as a Judge and a child support 
collection agent is even more corrupt than Karma the Cop.   

DRIVING WHILE PROHIBITED 
13) In December 2015 I was living in my Motorhome at Brentwood Motors. I could not make a living in the car business without a driver’s licence. I went on welfare and 

I worked part time for labour unlimited for $13 an hour doing manual labour. Out of frustration with Karma the cop’s lies and Madame Justice Bakon’s 
incompetence as a Judge to do the right thing, and being on welfare. I decided to start driving again. I thought if I got caught driving I would tell my story to the 
Judge about Karma the cop and Justice Bakon Chantel Mathers (FMEP) and finally get my day in court. I still believed in the Canadian Justice System. I knew Divorce 
Court was corrupt but I still had faith in our Justice system. It would be another year before Madame Justice Watchuk made her decision. I thought I would get a 
$1,000 fine just like every other time I got caught driving. I thought when I won my case against Robert Cortens I would pay off my tickets. 

CHARGED WITH SEXUAL ASSAULT 
14) In December 2015 and January 2016 I got caught driving 4 times. The 1st time I got caught I didn’t go to jail like Karma said. They impounded my car and gave me a 

$1,000 fine. Two weeks after that I got caught again. Same thing, $1,000 fine and impounded my car and I never went to jail. In January 2016 the Burnaby RCMP put 
a sting out on me. They put 5 police officers at Brentwood Motors in an attempt to catch me driving. I drove into Brentwood Motors and I was arrested and charged 
for driving while prohibited and sexual assault. I asked what sexual assault are you are talking about to officer Gill. He asked do you remember walking into a liquor 
store on December 15th and saying to a 5 year old girl, “Are you excited Santa Clause is coming to town.” I said I remember that. The mother had pointed out that 
my fly was down and I apologised and did it up and left. Officer Gill then said that they had me on video tape. I said, “Did I do anything wrong on the video tape”. 
Officer Gill said that he didn’t see where I did anything wrong, but his supervisor told him to charge me with sexual assault. I was taken to and finger printed at the 
Burnaby RCMP Headquarters and charged with sexual assault. I told Officer Gill that if I was going to be put in jail on a charge of sexual assault that I wanted to be 
put into protective custody.  He told me I was not going to Jail. He told me that he would give me a ride back to Brentwood Motors. I didn’t go to Jail like Karma said. 
I received $1,000 fine and they towed my car. They dropped the charges 2 weeks before the case was to start because I didn’t do anything wrong. I got stopped 
again in January and they gave me a $1,000 fine and towed my car. I did not go to Jail like Karma said. I then stopped driving and waited to go to court so I could tell 
the Judge my story. It would take 8 months and 20 court postponements before I would get my day in court. 

PROSECUTER NAVI GILL 
15) In August 2016 I went to court on a charge of driving while prohibited and met prosecutor Navi Gill. Miss Gill walked into a packed courtroom of litigants and 

boisterously starts talking to the other prosecutors about a previous litigant named Cock. She laughed and giggled like a little school girl as she said that word. 
Everyone in courtroom was privy to the prosecutor’s conversation. She would say that word 3 more times giggling each time like a little school girl. She was not 
talking about a rooster. I was very intimated and shocked at the lack of respect these female prosecutors had for the other people in the courtroom. What would 
the ME TOO movement say if a male prosecutor walked into the courtroom and said the C word 4 times, referring to the female genitalia and giggling each time like 
a little school boy. When the judge walked in Navi Gill stated to the Judge that the prosecution was asking for 3 months in jail and a 3 year suspension of my driver’s 
licence. The previous prosecutors were asking for a 1 year suspension of my driver’s licence and a $1,000 fine. I tried to talk to Ms. Gill at the prosecutor’s office 
while she was behind bullet proof glass. Navi Gill complained to the Judge that I was harassing her. The case was postponed 2 more weeks. 

JUSTICE BAKON AGAIN 
16) The next time I went to court Navi Gill had me taken out of Justice St Pierre court room for my case to be heard by a different Judge. Justice St Pierre is an Afrucan 

Canadian Judge who has a great reputation with other litigants in court and other Judges and lawyers in the System. I listened to some of his cases and I could tell 
that this man was a good Judge. I walked into another court room with Navi Gill and waited for the next Judge to come in. In walks Madame Justice Bakon. I say to 
Justice Bakon do you remember me from (FMEP) court. Justice Bakon responded “NO”. I am a pretty unforgettable guy and I did not believe her.  The Justice System 
is supposed to be random Judges. What are the odds of me getting the same Judge 3 times in row pertaining to (FMEP) taking away my driver’s licence? I knew I 
was being set up. I postponed the case and returned to court on September 16. 

LEGAL AID LAWYER 
17) On September 16 2016 I went to court on a charge of driving while prohibited. I was on welfare so I had a Legal Aid lawyer representing me. Two minutes before the 

court room opened my legal aid lawyer says to me, “Tell me your story Mr. Marshall.” I looked at my lawyer and said I have been trying to tell you my story for 6 
months. I said I have 2 minutes to tell you my story or I have 15 minutes to tell it to the Judge.  I said, “I am facing prison time. If I am going to go jail I would rather 
do it on my dime as opposed to telling my story to you in 2 minutes.” 

JUSTICE RIDEOUT 
18) In September 2016 I went to court in front of Justice Rideout.  Justice Rideout looked at me and said, “What do you have to say about your charges of driving while 

prohibited Mr. Marshall.” I told Justice Rideout that, “It was a cry for help.” I told Justice Rideout about my divorce nightmare with [FMEP] and the British Columbia 
Justice System. I told Justice Rideout that [FMEP] had just given me back my driver’s licence the previous month. I told Justice Rideout that if I can get my driver’s 
licence back I can get off welfare and start making money in the auto industry again. I told Justice Rideout that I had not seen my son for 2 years because of this 
divorce nightmare that never seems to end. Justice Rideout looked at me and said he has heard enough, Justice Rideout then said, “I DON’T CARE.” Justice Rideout 
sentenced me to 30 days in Jail and a 2 year suspension of my driver’s licence. One arm of the law (FMEP) takes my driver’s licence away and then gives it back. The 
other arm of the law takes my driver’s licence away and puts me in Jail for 30 days. I told Justice Rideout that impaired drivers don’t get that stiff of a sentence. He 
looked at me and said do you want to do weekends in jail or all 30 days at once. I did not want to go to jail at that particular moment so I said I would do weekends. 

WEEKEND IN PRISON 
19) I tried a weekend in Jail. I was locked up with a 21 year old Chinese drug dealer. We were locked up for 54 hours in a small cell. There was one Cot in the cell and a 

Mat on the floor beside the toilet. I suggested to the drug dealer that I would take the cot for the 1st night and he could have it for the 2nd night. He told me that he 
always gets the cot. I told him that other guys doing weekends told me that the oldest guy gets the cot. We argued for a moment and he let me have the cot for 
both nights. If anyone would like to know what it is like in prison, lock yourself in the bathroom for 54 hours and bring a can of dog food and get rid of the toilet 
paper because the prison ran out. 

20 DAYS IN JAIL 
20)  After my weekend in jail I went back to see Justice Rideout and I burst into tears. I told him that I would not subject my dog to such a nightmare place. I told Justice 

Rideout to lock me up for the remainder of my sentence in the big house. I was in my suit and Justice Rideout told me that my tie was too nice to go to jail. As this 
wasn’t my first time in Jail I had brought a change of clothes. But thanks for the advice Justice Rideout. We don’t want the legal system stealing lawyer Dan Barkers 
suit and tie. I was sent to North Fraser pretrial. I was locked up with a Heroin addict for 4 days. I had an abscess tooth and the prison pharmacy would not give me 
my penicillin even though I mentioned my condition to Justice Rideout and I brought a letter from my doctor. My heroin attic roommate could not get methadone 
for his withdrawals symptoms from the Pharmacy. After 4 days of needless pain and suffering my cell mate finally broke down and threatened to kill himself. I was 
transferred the next day out of the pretrial centre and into a dormitory style prison and I was able to get on penicillin again for my toothache. My next cellmate was 
a drug addict who robbed a John Dear store. He had just shot some speed in his arm when the police arrived. He rammed the police car and began a high speed 
chase. He was very proud of himself. He even had newspaper clippings. He was my roommate for 5 days. He changed cells and moved in with a guy he knew. That is 
when Wolf moved into my cell. Every night at 4 am he would wake up and want to fight. When I told the guard my story she said to me, “That is Wolf, he has fetal 
alcohol syndrome.” I told the guard that I can handle living with a Drug addict, a drug dealer, or even a gang member. But I can’t handle living with a crazy person. 
The guard told me that if Wolf would agree to change cells that they would allow him to do so. Unfortunately when I was in jail the Trump election was on. I bought 
Wolf a pizza so he would let me watch the election results. When the guard asked Wolf if he would move Wolf responded by saying, “I like living with Chris.” I 
bought Wolf another pizza and he agreed to move. My next roommate wasn’t much better. He was in jail for breaking into cars. He would snore and fart all night 
long. 

TO LITTLE TO LATE 
21) In October 2016 I called Karin my ex‐wife and told her what happened with Justice Rideout. Karin told me that she would talk to [FMEP] and tell them to give me 

back my driver’s licence back. I told Karin that [FMEP] gave me back my driver’s licence a month before I went to Court. I told Karin that the Motor Vehicle act has 
now taken away my licence away for 2 years. I told Karin that there was nothing she could do to help me get my driver’s licence now. I told Karin that I tried to give 
[FMEP] $10,000 if they would give me back my driver’s licence but they refused to take it until they received there $3,000 collection fee. I asked Karin if she would 
help me to get off [FMEP] hit list. I wanted to get my passport back and I wanted to be able to open up a bank account again and try and rebuild my life. I was tired 



of Chantel Mathers sending letters every month to car dealerships calling me a dead beat dad. Karin agreed to do so. She forgave the $15,000 debt for child support 
arrears. After all she is a millionaire. I just wish she would have done it sooner. 

MEHRDAD VEHEDI 
22) In October 2016 when I got out of Jail my life turned into living hell. I went back to my motorhome which was sitting 1 block off Main Street on Industrial Avenue. I 

was living in a parking lot selling cars with a guy I knew who had rented the property. My motorhome had been broken into while I was in jail and all my clothes 
were stolen.  A couple of months later Mehrdad Vehedi the guy that I was selling cars with stole my motorhome which I had been living in for the last 4 years. Mr. 
Vehedi forged the signature on the transfer form and transferred the motorhome into his name. I called the police to try and get my motorhome back. The police 
said it was a civil matter and I had to sue him. 

DAVID PINARD…SIMPLY AUTO SALES 
23) In April 2017 I moved into an old abandoned used car lot in Cloverdale. My friend David Pinard was in the process of opening up a used car lot at this location. He 

allowed me to live at the empty car lot and be security for the place. He charged me $20 a night to the sleep on the floor of his car lot with rats running around. I 
killed two of them. When you are down on your luck it is amazing how people will take advantage of you. I was 58 years old and I took a part time job as a concrete 
stripper at a construction site across the street from the car lot. The day before welfare Wednesday came I called welfare to confirm that my check would be ready. 
I had just started working and I had to wait 2 weeks before I would get my first check. Welfare told me that I never filled out my monthly remittance and I would not 
get my check. My friend David Pinard told me that if he did not get his rent check the next day that he would kick me out. I had not eaten in 2 days and I certainly 
did not want to sleep on the street so I made the mistake of driving a car to the welfare office to fill out my monthly remittance form. I was pulled over in front of 
the welfare office on Commercial Drive and charged with driving while prohibited again. They confiscated my car for 60 days and I did not go to jail. Just Bad luck. A 
second offence of driving while prohibited carries a mandatory prison sentence.                                                      

THE NEW IMMAGRANT WHO SAVED MY LIFE 
24) In 2018 I met a wealthy new immigrant to Canada and we became friends. He told me that he wanted to open a used car lot with me. I told him my story. He said no 

problem. He hired a full time driver for me at a cost of $3,000 a month to drive me around. He then paid the Vehicles Sales Authority $5,000 so I could get my car 
salesman licence back as they had taken it from me. He then gave my lawyer’s lawyer $10,000 to take my case to court and plead not guilty on September 17, 2019. 
I was living on my friend lawyer Dan Barkers 37‐foot sail boat at the foot of Davie Street in Vancouver. My friend told me to pack my bags and to come with him. He 
brought me to a studio apartment that he owned in Coal Harbour which is located right beside Trump Tower and the Shangri‐La Hotel. He then looked at me 
straight in the eyes and said, “You can live here for Free Chris.  I had not seen my 13 year old son who lives in Alberta in over 3 years because of my divorce 
nightmare. My friend now pays for my son to fly to Vancouver every month at a cost of $1,000 per month. He then said, “Let’s open up a used car lot together Chris 
and we will split the profit. 50/50.” 

NATIONAL AUTO GROUP 
25) On March 1st 2019 we started a car lot called National Auto Group. We are licenced to sell cars at 1195 east Hastings. We opened up a storage lot located at 333 

terminal which will hold over 100 cars at a cost of $10,000 per month. I am a car salesman without a driver’s licence who sold 72 cars In June. My staff consists of a 
lady named Richelle who I hired 9 months ago as my driver. Richelle lives in a woman’s shelter here in Vancouver and has 3 kids that the court will not let her see. 
She works 12 hours a day just like me. I also hired lawyer Dan Barkers youngest son named Harry. Harry is special needs and works part time cleaning my cars. This 
is my team and we have until September 17, 2019 to make my story public. I believe that making these people accountable in the public’s eye is my only defence. 
Either that or a jury of my peers which I cannot get. If I go to jail we all lose our jobs and my investor will lose a lot of money. I have no faith in our Justice system 
and I will be conducting a Fathers 4 Justice rally from now until September 17, 2019 at 333 terminal. I have lots of hot dogs and plenty of Pepsi and signs on hand if 
you would like to join me. Special appearances by Batman and Bentley my dog. LOL 

KARMA 
26) The ironic part of this story is that Richelle Thomas the girl I hired to drive me around for the last 9 months does not have a driver’s licence either. When I hired her 

she showed me her driver’s licence which was valid. Three months into her employment she was stopped by the police and they informed her that ICBC had 
suspended her driver’s licence as she had 5 previous tickets for driving without insurance. She has since been stopped 3 more times by the police. Each time the 
police stop her they give her back her now expired / suspended driver’s licence and they don’t give her a ticket. On the other hand I am sitting at a picnic table 
eating a steak and drinking a beer and Karma the cop writes me a ticket for driving while prohibited because she thinks I am going to drive. Well Karma’s a Bitch and 
because of her I am going to tell my divorce story to as many Canadians as possible. British Columbia’s D Grade Justice System needs to be held accountable for the 
sake of all Canadians. 
 
                                                                             

LAWYER DAN BARKER 
27) In 2013 I made a veteran lawyer/litigator by the name of Daniel J Barker my best friend who was educated at McGill University. He has practiced law in Vancouver 

for the last 32 years. In 2012 he won the award for doing more pro bono work than any other lawyer in British Columbia. He tells me that divorce lawyers in Canada 
are the bottom feeders of the legal industry. He tells me that these lawyers often collude with each other to instigate animosity and prolong the divorce nightmare 
in Canada. He tells me that if some lawyers hear of a married couple getting a divorce who have $500,000 equity in their home, that they get goose bumps because 
that means they are going to make $250,000 and the other lawyer will make $250,000. Which of course puts them in the 50% bracket as far as income tax is 
concerned and the government gets there 50%. Before I tell you my story from the beginning my I want to tell you about another British Columbia’s Family’s story                    

THE BERRY FAMILLY 
28) On Christmas day 2017 a Victoria man by the name of Andrew Barry who had spent 5 years in the divorce system of Canada was a broken man. He had spent 

$100,000 which he won in the lottery fighting his millionaire ex‐wife for access to his 2 beautiful daughters. Aubrey was 4 years old and Chloe was 6. The Canadian 
Family Justice system had recently given Mr. Berry the “SILVER BULLET” treatment. This is when the justice system accuses a man of sexually assaulting his child. In 
Canada a silver bullet is used to kill a father’s hopes and dreams of being a parent to his children by slandering there name. In 2017 the Canadian Justice System 
accused Mr. Berry of sexually assaulting his 5 year old daughter when he dried her off with a towel. They said the 5 year old said it was inappropriate. In reality it 
was a Judge and a lawyer who concocted this lie and charged Mr. Berry with sexual assault. The British Columbia Justice system charged Mr. Berry for sexually 
assaulting his daughter. Two weeks after the sexual assault charge was laid against Mr. Berry they exonerated him. Too late the damage was done. The stigma of 
sexually assaulting the two people that Mr. Berry loved more than anything in the world was too great for him.  Mr. Berry became unemployed and unable to cope 
with the financial stress and the constant and unrelenting abuse by B.C. Family Justice Syste m. On Christmas Day 2017 Mr. Berry’s was with his children. His hydro 
to his apartment had been cut off. Mr. Berry was being evicted from his home at the end of the month. Mr. Berry was a broken man who lost his mind and snapped. 
Mr. Berry killed the two souls that he loved most in the world. Chloe and Aubrey. He then tried to kill himself but failed to do so. Andrew Berry stands trial in 
Vancouver on a double murder charge. In my opinion Family Justice system pushed Mr. Berry over the Edge. Mr. Berry is obviously a sick man and his lawyer is 
pleading not guilty with the defense of someone else did the deed. The Justice system is trying to sweep their lies and manipulations against Mr. Berry under the 
rug. Please read my story and email me your opinion. 

29)  
KARMA’S A BITCH 

30) I am scheduled to go to court on September 17, 2019 on a charge of driving while prohibited which carries a mandatory prison sentence. I am pleading not guilty. 
The ironic part of this story  

MY STORY FRON THE BEGGINING 
31) Chris was born on April 1st 1960 in North Battleford Saskatchewan. He is the youngest of 3 boys who are all 2 years apart. Chris’s family owned the movie theatre 

and bowling alley and his mom was a home maker. His father died in 1973 in a plane crash and his mother moved the family to Calgary in 1976.  
32) Karin was born on April 18 1964 in Saskatoon Saskatchewan. Karin is the oldest of 3 girls. Her Family moved to Calgary in the early 70’s. Her parents are Doctors. Her 

father was head of anesthesiology at the Rocky view Hospital in Calgary and her mother is a surgeon.   
33) Karin’s parents spent 17 years in divorce court fighting over a financial matter. That’s what I call a lawyers dream. Two rich doctors suing each other for money. Only 

a broken Family Justice would take 17 years to make a decision on a piece of property.  
34) Karin and Chris met while attending college at SAIT in Calgary. They dated between 1982 and 1986. Karin was 18 and Chris was 22. Karin was taking welding 

engineering technology, and Chris was taking Hotel and Restaurant Management. In 1986 they split up and Chris moved to Vancouver to open up a used car lot. 
Karin continued in the welding industry and eventually became a welding inspector who lives and works in the Red Deer Alberta area.  

35) From 1976 to 1986 Chris lived in Calgary Alberta.  
36) In 1986 Chris moved to Vancouver.  
37) From 1986 to 1990, Chris opened up his 1st used car lot in Burnaby called Urban Auto Sales.  
38) From 1990 to 1992, Chris worked as a new car Salesman for Open Road Toyota at the Richmond Auto Mall.  
39) From 1993 to 1994 Chris managed Kens Suzuki.  
40) From 1995 to 1997 Chris opened up a used car dealership on Kingsway called Chris Marshall Motors.  
41) From 1997 to 2006 Chris worked as a self‐employed Auto Broker in Vancouver.  



42) In 2000 Chris went back to Red Deer Alberta and looked up his old girlfriend Karin. The romance was rekindled after 14 years and they married 3 months later. 
43) On November 14, 2000 Karin and Chris they were married in Red Deer Alberta. They were both self‐employed and had flexible careers.  Their plan was to live the 

winters at Chris’s apartment on Beach Avenue in Vancouver and the summers at Karin’s Lake front cabin in Sylvan Lake, Alberta. 
44) On September 14 2001, Matthew Marshall was born. Chris was 41 and Karin was 37. 
45) Karin was suffering from post‐pardon depression after having the baby. It is common for woman 0ver 35 who have a baby to suffer from this illness. Karin took a 

year off work and hired a live in nanny to care for their son. They tried counselling to no avail.  Sadly Karin said that she could not find her personality after the baby 
was born and she wanted a divorce.  

46) Welcome to Judicial Hell Canadian Style. 
LAWYER BRIAN ADAIR 

47) In 2002 Chris hired a lawyer by the name of Brian Adair. Karin hired her own lawyer. Chris’s goal was to set up access to his 1 year old son two weekends a month 
like every divorce dad would get.  Chris would fly from Vancouver to Calgary and rent a car and drive to the Red Deer to see his son. This would cost him $1,000 a 
trip. Sometimes Karin would let Chris see his son and sometimes she would not. Chris paid Mr. Adair $3,500 to go to court to set a court ordered access schedule so 
he could see his son. The 1st time Chris went to court, Mr. Adair told Chris that he did not like the judge and Chris should come back next week. The 2nd and 3rd time 
Chris went back to court in Red Deer Mr. Adair said that he did not like that judge and Chris should come back the next week. The fourth time Chris went to court 
we proceeded with the case. The Judge ordered that Chris would get 2 days a month access to see his son. Mr. Adair prepared a court order granting Chris access to 
see his son 1 day a month. Chris said to Mr. Adair that the Judge said that Chris could see his son two days a month with overnight access. Mr. Adair said,” How do 
you know what the Judge said you were not in the court room.” “Chris said yes he was and I showed Mr. Adair a copy of the court transcript where Chris had spoken 
to the Judge. Mr. Adair replied,” Give me another $3,500 and I will get you the 2nd day access. Chris fired Lawyer Brian Adair and Chris has been basically self‐
represented ever since.  Mr. Adair in typical lawyer fashion tried to extort another $3,500 from Chris by refusing to give back Chris’s divorce documents. Chris told 
Mr. Adair that he would picket in front of Mr. Adair’s office he did not return his documents. Mr. Adair gave the documents back and they parted ways 

MADAM JUSTICE ERB. 
48) The 5th time I went to divorce court was in front of Madam Justice Erb. The previous Judge who had heard my case had retired the day after he made the order 

granting me 2 days a month access to see my son.  I showed the court transcript to Justice Erb and she agreed with me that I should have 2 days a month access. 
Out of 69 times to divorce court with access to my son being the only issue, this was the only time that actually ever won in court. I asked Madam Justice Erb if we 
could extend access from 48 hours to 54 hours so I could spend the whole weekend with my son. Justice Erb then ordered Karin and me to go in the next room and 
to try and work it out between us. Karin looked at her lawyer and asked if this was OK. Her lawyer responded. “I am getting $350 an hour, you go talk as long as you 
want.” Karin and I agreed that I could see my son from Friday at 10 am to Sunday at 4 pm one time a month. I asked for a 2nd weekend a month access but it was 
denied by Madam Justice Erb.  

49) I came back every month to see my son. I would pick up my son and drive to Calgary and stay at my brother’s house. The next month I told Karin that I took our son 
to see his grandmother in Vancouver. Karin was very upset and she hired a Calgary lawyer by the name of Jane Hoffman who had me come back to court.  

MADAME JUSTICE COLLEEN KENNNEY 
50) In 2003 Lawyer Jane Hoffman became Karin’s lawyer. I will never forget the 1st time I met Lawyer Jane Hoffman Madam and Justice Colleen Kenney. Justice Kenney 

looked at me and Jane Hoffman and said she had read Jane Hoffmans affidavit but she didn’t have the time to read mine. She laughed and shrugged her shoulders 
and said us Judges are just so busy to read everything. Justice Kenney asked Jane Hoffman what my affidavit said and Jane Hoffman responded that there was 
nothing important in my affidavit. Justice Kenney refused to listen to me and transferred the divorce proceedings to Calgary. She then made an order restricting my 
access to my son to any hotel in the Red Deer area at Jane Hoffman’s request. I could not bring my son to my brother’s house which was 1 hour away in Calgary. I 
was allowed to stay at any hotel in the Red Deer area. Thus began over 2 years of dealing with Lawyer Jane Hoffman and Madam Justice Colleen Kenney who would 
blatantly lie and manipulate Karin and me in Court. I would go to court over 20 times with Justice Kenney trying to get access to my son outside of the Red Deer 
area. Some of the blatant lies and manipulations that Jane Hoffman and Justice Kenney concocted are as follows.  

DR. ROSHNI DAY 
51) In 2003 I went to court in front of Justice Kenney and said that Jane Hoffman was telling Karin to deny me court ordered access. I asked Justice Kenney to make an 

order that forces Karin to let me see my son. I also wanted to be able to bring me son to Vancouver. Lawyer Jane Hoffman opposed this and said that I was a flight 
risk. Justice Kenney ordered Karin and me to undergo a Practice note 7. That is where we go and talk to a Psychologist separately. We went to talk to Dr. Roshni 
Daya who interview Karin and I seperatly. After the interview Dr. Daya told me to tell Justice Kenney, that Karin was suffering from Post Pardon Depression. Dr. Daya 
told me that any mother who hired a live in Nanny to look after the child and is not working is a clear sign of postpartum depression. I said why you don’t put it in 
your report. Dr. Daya responded that she was not allowed to send a report to the Judge. I said to Dr. Daya, “What is the point of coming to talk to you if you can’t 
report your findings to the Judge. Dr. Daya responded that the Madame Justice Kenney specifically made an order stating that she could not be privy to Dr. Daya’s 
findings. When I returned to court I told Justice Kenny what Dr. Daya had said about Karin’s mental state. I asked justice Kenney to have Karin’s mental state 
evaluated and she refused. Justice Kenney stated that Karin had been previously been evaluated by her employer where she is a welding inspector. 

LAWYER JANE HOFFMAN 
52) In 2004 I went back to Court with Justice Kenney. I asked her if I could bring my son to Vancouver to see his grandmother. Karin was not in court and lawyer Jane 

Hoffman was there by herself.  Jane Hoffman blatantly lied in court and said that I threw a dirty diaper at my 3 year old son’s day care worker. Jane Hoffman had no 
collaboration from my ex‐wife or the day care worker. She just made it up. Madam Justice Colleen Kenney said that she believed Jane Hoffman. Justice Kenney 
refused my request to let me go to Vancouver with my son 3 year old son. I emailed Lawyer Jane Hoffman that night and called her a “Lying legal horror Lawyer that 
that uses children as pawn for judicial extortion. I thought my analogy was bang on. Madam Justice Colleen Kenney then cancelled my access to my son and ordered 
me to undergo a psychiatric risk evaluation by Dr. Gordon Peirce. 

DR. GORDON PEIRCE 
53) I underwent a $3,500 psychiatric risk evaluation performed by Dr. Gordon Peirce. After the evaluation was done I asked Dr. Gordon Peirce, “What should do if my 

ex‐wife keeps denning me access to my son.” Doctor Peirce looked at me straight in my eyes and said, “If your ex‐wife and her lawyer don’t want you to see your 
son then you should “Find another woman and have another baby. “When I returned to Court after my evaluation Justice Kenney stated that she could see nowhere 
in Dr. Peirce’s evaluation that I was a flight risk. Jane Hoffman asked for a postponement. When I returned to court the next day lawyer Jane Hoffman had Dr. Peirce 
with her. Dr. Peirce then stated to Madam Justice Colleen Kenney that there was a possible risk to the child of me being a flight risk. Justice Kenny said to Dr. Peirce, 
“I see nowhere in your evaluation where Mr. Marshall is a flight risk to his son. Dr. Peirce responded by saying, “That is because you are a Judge. Only a psychiatrist 
can interpret my psychiatric evaluation.” Justice Kenney bought this blatant lie and denied me Vancouver access to my son.  Justice Kenney then declared my 
income to be $50,000 a year even though I declared my income of $30,000 per year to revenue Canada. You can read Dr Peirces  

MADAME JUSTICE JACQUELINE COUTU 
54) In 2005 I went to court in front of Madame Justice J Coutu who was the trial Judge for our divorce. It was a 10 day trial for a 20 month marriage. Due to financial 

reasons I was self‐represented and my ex‐wife was represented by lawyer Jane Hoffman. It was a complete waste of my time and money. At the end of the 10 day 
trial my ex‐wife’s lawyer stood up and asked for costs of $100,000 in legal fees. As I was self‐represented I stood up in court and said that I could not believe that my 
ex‐wife had spent $100,000 trying to keep me from my son. It was at this time Madame Justice J Coutu stood up and said,” Your wife spent that money protection 
the assets in the marital home.” I looked at the Justice Coutu and said, “I told my ex‐wife that she could keep the marital home. I told her that that all I wanted was 
to be friends and have access to my son. Justice Coutu looked at my ex‐wife and asked if this was true. My ex‐wife said it was true. In my opinion Lawyer Jane 
Hoffman and the Justice system used and abused me and my ex‐wife who was clearly suffering from postpartum depression. Justice Coutu’s Reason for Judgement 
read as follows. That I would be allowed to see my son 2 weekends a month at any hotel in Alberta. I would be allowed to bring my 5 year old son to Alberta 4 times 
a year to my home in Vancouver. My income would be imputed to be $50,000 as Justice Kenney had previously ordered. The marital home was purchased for 
$200,000 and there was virtually no mortgage on it at the time of the divorce. Justice Coutu gave me $60,000 from the home. She charged me $30,000 of my ex‐
wife’s legal fees and put the other $30,000 in escrow to go towards future child support. She looked at me and said you get nothing Mr. Marshall. Two years after 
the divorce was finalized my ex‐wife sold the marital home for $900,000. You can read Madame Justice Coutu’s reason for Judgement on my website 
afathersstory.ca 

DENIED ACCESS TO MY SON 
55)  Over the next 15 months my ex‐wife continue to deny me access to my son at Lawyer Jane Hoffman’s request. I would fly from Vancouver to Calgary, rent a car, 

and then drive to Red Deer only to have my ex‐wife refuse me access. So I went back to court and asked Justice Coutu to change the court order as I had no 
recourse to stop Karin and Jane from denying me access to my son. I told Justice Coutu that the police could not enforce the Court Order as they could not 
understand it. The police also said and there was no enforcement clause. Justice Coutu refused to change the order and implement an enforcement clause. Justice 
Coutu told me to be careful as she had the power to give access or take access away. I was getting frustrated with the constant denial of my Court Ordered access. I 
told Justice Coutu that I had the power to picket or not picket. Justice Coutu told me to take this as a warning and fined me $1,000 for coming to court.  

DEAD‐BEAT JUDGE COUTU 
56) In In 2006 I went back to court with the same complaint. Justice Coutu responded that she would not change the Court Order to be written more clearly. I told 

Justice Coutu that the court order states that I get my son this weekend in Vancouver. Justice Coutu said you had access to your son the previous month in 



Vancouver is that correct. I told Justice Coutu that was correct however the court order states that I get Vancouver access this weekend in Vancouver. Lawyer Jane 
Hoffman and Justice Coutu and I discussed what the court order actually says. You can read transcript of our discussion on my blog page. It is amazing how a judge 
and a lawyer cannot interpret a sentence in a court order written by a Judge. Eventually justice Coutu agreed with me that my access was to occur this weekend in 
Vancouver. I asked Madame Justice Coutu to change the order so that it actually made sense and put in an enforcement cause. I was frustrated wasting $1,000 in 
airline tickets and taking time off work and not seeing my son. Justice Coutu refused to change the change the court order and said, “I don’t care what the court 
order says.” You are not allowed to bring your son to Vancouver this weekend. I said but the court order says I can. Justice Coutu responded by saying that if I took 
my son to Vancouver that she would take my Vancouver access away from me. Out of frustration with lawyer Jane Hoffman advising my ex‐wife to deny me my 
Court ordered access with no repercussions from the Madame Justice Jacqueline Coutu I decided to follow the court order and not the judge’s instruction. So I 
brought my son to Vancouver that weekend as the court ordered said I could. That is when Justice Coutu wrote an ex parte order and suspended my access and set 
up a court date for me to come back in front of her on a charge of contempt of court. I will never forget what Justice Coutu said to my lawyer and I quote. “I don’t 
care what I told Mr. Marshall. I would put him in Jail for 60 days if I could but the law says 30 days is the maximum. Take him away.” 

KEVIN NEWMAN OF GLOBAL TV 
57) In 2006 Kevin Newman of Global TV told me to join Fathers 4 Justice and rally the people of Canada as to the abusive Family Justice System. Kevin had recently done 

a documentary titled, “The Dads who Fought Back.” I joined Fathers 4 Justice and I created a blog titled afathersstory.ca that documented the next 16 years of my 
life going to divorce court in Alberta and British Columbia.  

FATHERS 4 JUSTICE 
58) Fathers 4 Justice was started in 2001 by a man named Matt O’Conner from England. Fathers would dress up as Super Heroes like Batman or Spiderman. The 

significance to super heroes was that children look up to their parents as super heroes. He got divorced and the Justice system would allow to see his 3 kids 1 day a 
month under supervised visits. Fathers 4 Justice protested peacefully in country’s around the world that are governed by the English Justice system. All I ever 
wanted was to have access to see my 5 year old son and I consistently came up against a brick wall by the Canadian Justice System.  I wrote a story and titled it 
“STEAL MY MONEY NOT MY SON JUSTICE J COUTU.” This story documenting my 69 times to divorce court and the $500,000 the Canadian Justice system has 
extorted from me. In 2006 I handed out 10,000 copies of my story at a hockey game in Calgary. My story was featured on Global TV 6 o’clock news. When I returned 
to court I was sentenced to 30 days in jail at Spy Hill prison on a contempt of court charge by Madame Justice J Coutu. She then resigned her post as a Supreme 
Court Judge. Justice Coutu told me that another Judge would take over my case. The nightmare continues.                                                                                                   

SPY HILL PRISON 
59) I was sent to Spy Hill prison in Calgary for 30 days on a charge of contempt of court. When you go to jail on a contempt of court charge you do the whole 30 days. I 

was locked up in solitary confinement for the first 5 days. I was put in a cell by myself for 23 hours a day with 1 hour in the common room. I was unable to make a 
phone call and tell my family, friends or business associates where I was. I was eventually put in the mainstream prison system where I spent the remainder of my 
25 day prison sentence. While in prison they called me the preacher as I was constantly talking about the Abusive Family Justice System. I became the poker 
champion and I had all the chocolate bars. I had the inmates working for me doing beadwork and making bracelets that read “Parents 4 Justice” I did a Fathers 4 
Justice protest in Stanley Park and the parks board stole the bracelets that I made in jail. 

JUSTICE SULLIVAN 
60) In 2007 I got out of jail and I returned to court in front of Justice Sullivan. Justice Sullivan looked at me and told me to stop trying to get access to my 6 year old son 

or it would kill me. Madame Justice Coutu had made an order stating that I had to have a 2nd Court ordered risk evaluation at a cost of $2,500 before I could see my 
son. My 2nd court ordered evaluation was by a psychologist named Dr. Thomas Dalby. He stated and I quote, “Mr. Marshall appears to be a warm hearted out going 
man who enjoys life and readily.” The 2nd order that Madame Coutu made was that any future access would have to be supervised by a Psychiatrist. Not a 
psychologist, not a therapist, but a Psychiatrist. These guys charge $500 an hour. Fortunately Karin told Jane Hoffman that this was not necessary. It took me 6 
months to finally have my access fully reinstated. 

MADAME JUSTICE LOVECCHIO 
61) The next time I went to court was with Madame Justice Lovecchio. I was behind on child support and lawyer Jane Hoffman told Karin to deny me access to my son 

again.  Madame Justice Locecchio told me that there was nothing she could do about it and fined me $1,000. I returned to Vancouver and filed for Bankruptcy. I 
approached Jeff Milani who owned Milani Auto Sales. I was an Auto Broker who would buy cars from new car dealers and sell them to used car dealers. I was in 
direct competition with Mr. Mialni. I told Jeff that if he would pay my child support ($3,000) I would give him all the cars that I could find. I would buy cars 
exclusively for him if he would pay off my child support arrears. I was an Auto broker and I knew he needed cars. Jeff agreed and I started working for him 

MADAME JUSTICE HORNER 
62) In 2007 I returned to court again as Lawyer Jane Hoffman was instructing Karin to deny me access to my son again. This time the Judge was Madame Justice Horner. 

Lawyer Jane Hoffman told Justice Horner that I had court fines totaling $2,000. Madame Justice Horner told me that if I paid the $2,000 court fines that she would 
order a psychiatric evaluation on Karin. I pulled $2,000 out of my pocket and gave it to the bailiff. Justice Horner then responded, “I am not doing an evaluation on 
Ms. Wallat. Case dismissed. Justice Horner blatantly lied to me to get at my money. 

JJ MOTOR CARS 
63)  In 2007 the owner JJ Motors Mr. Jonathon Wu was opening a 2nd car lot in Burnaby. He offered to give me his car lot in Vancouver. I told him that I would love to 

have his car lot but because of my divorce I had no money and I had just filed for bankruptcy. I told Jonathon that I just spent 30 days in Jail on a contempt of court 
in Alberta.  He told me that was no problem and that he would give me the money under the condition that he would get 20% of my net profit. I agreed and under 
his tutelage I perfected my craft of selling inexpensive cars. I sold cars the Chinese way. Lots of customers and a little profit. I offered all my customers a free safety 
inspection, free 30 day power train warranty, and a free 2 day money back guarantee. This was a straight forward formula that the customers liked and respected. If 
the customer was not happy 2 days after the sale we would give them all their money back. This would give the customer a chance to go to his own mechanic if they 
wanted. We were able to average ovSer 80 car sales consistently every month. We never had a customer complaint because we would give them their money back. 
My arrangement with JJ motors lasted until June 2009 when our lease expired. So I went looking for a new investor and I called up Air Canada Pilot Robert Cortens. 

AFATHERSSTORY.CA 
64)  In 2007 while working for JJ Motors I started a blog called afathersstory.ca. Google called it a blog that exposes the bias in the justice system towards fathers 

fighting for access to their children. I documented the next 7 years of my life in the divorce system in my Blog. My blog afathersstory.ca documented my life was 
getting over 10,000 hits every month. I hung my Fathers 4 Justice signs up on the # 1 Freeway. I put them on the Stanley park cause way and at the foot of the 
Burrard street Bridge. I even made a video of my plight asking Vancouver to help me fight for all parents’ rights to see their children at the Vancouver Sun Run in 
2007. You can see my video of my campaign at the Sun Run on my blog.  

CALGARY COURT HOUSE 
65) In 2008 I returned to Calgary to do another protest. I was getting nowhere with the court. I rented 150 feet of fence and put it on the sidewalk across the street 

from the Calgary Court House. I hung up my Fathers 4 Justice signs on the fence. I dressed my lot guy up as batman and we started handing out my story to the 
public. Then security from the court house came over and told me to take my signs off the fence. They told me that the fence belonged to Canna Construction and I 
had no right putting my signs on their fence. I told the court security that I rented the fence and I was not going to take my signs down. Court Security called the 
police. A policeman came over and told me that I was not allowed to put my signs and fence on the sidewalk. I told the policeman that the sidewalk was public 
property and he did not have the right to tell me to take the fence down. At this point a bylaw officer came over and said my fence was ok and I was not breaking 
the law. I stood in front of the court house for 7 days and handed my story out. I eventually got tired of protesting and went back to Vancouver. I left my signs and 
the fence on the sidewalk. A week later I got a call from the Calgary police. The police told me that there was a big wind storm in Calgary and my fence was blown 
over. The policeman then told me that my signs were fine and they had put them in storage and I could pick them up the next time I was in Calgary. My protesting 
finally got the attention of the Chief Justice of Alberta and Justice Ged Hawco was assigned to my case. 

JUSTICE GED HAWCO 
66) In 2009 Justice Ged Hawco seized control of my case. I will never forget the 1st time I met Justice Ged Hawco. In my Blog I would refer to the Judges and Lawyers in 

Calgary as Lying Legal Horrors. Justice Ged Hawco looked at me and said.  “Are you calling me a legal whore?” I said, “No, I said legal horror, Like in a horror movie.” 
Justice Hawco responded” I don’t like you Mr. Wallet, I should put you in Jail Mr. Wallet. What do you have to say about that Mr Wallet?” I said, “My name is Mr. 
Marshall, Not Mr. Wallet.” We both smiled at each other Justice Ged Hawco then took away the restrictions limiting what city I could spend time with my son a. I 
was now allowed to bring my son to Vancouver every time I had access to him. I had to go back and see Judge Hawco every 3 months to set up an access Schedule 
for the upcoming 3 months. They Justice System never really let me go. 

JJ MOTOR CARS 
67)  In 2007 the owner JJ Motors Mr. Jonathon Wu was opening a 2nd car lot in Burnaby. He offered to give me his car lot in Vancouver. I told him that I would love to 

have his car lot but because of my divorce I had no money and I had just filed for bankruptcy. I told Jonathon that I just spent 30 days in Jail on a contempt of court 
in Alberta.  He told me that was no problem and that he would give me the money under the condition that he would get 20% of my net profit. I agreed and under 
his tutelage I perfected my craft of selling inexpensive cars. I sold cars the Chinese way. Lots of customers and a little profit. I offered all my customers a free safety 
inspection, free 30 day power train warranty, and a free 2 day money back guarantee. This was a straight forward formula that the customers liked and respected. If 
the customer was not happy 2 days after the sale we would give them all their money back. This would give the customer a chance to go to his own mechanic if they 



wanted. We were able to average over 80 car sales consistently every month. We never had a customer complaint because we would give them their money back. 
My arrangement with JJ motors lasted until June 2009 when our lease expired. So I went looking for a new investor and I called up Air Canada Pilot Robert Cortens. 

CC MOTORS CAR SALES 
68) From 2009 to 2012 I opened up CC Motor Cars Sales. In 2009 I approached Air Canada Pilot Captain Robert Cortens as I was winding down my business arrangement 

with JJ Motors. I had met Mr Cortens a couple of years prior at the Sand Bar restaurant at Granville Island. We became friends and he always expressed an interest 
into getting involved in the auto industry. He would always stop by JJ Motors and visit. In 2009 our lease at JJ motors was expiring and the land was going to be 
developed. I asked Mr. Cortens if he wanted to lend me $200,000 to open up a used car lot at Hastings and Clark. I was currently renting this property for storage 
with JJ Motors and I had the opportunity to continue the lease. We eventually agreed that I would pay Mr. Cortens $50,000 a year interest on the $200,000 loan. 
The business was put in Mr. Cortens name because the (VSA) Vehicle Sale Authority would not allow me to but the business in my name because I went Bankrupt 3 
years prior because of my divorce. The VSA told us that if my name was listed as part owner they would not grant us a licence. Mr. Cortens and I wrote up a contract 
stating that lot car lot was mine and Mr. Cortens was the investor. Our 1st month in business we sold 60 cars. This car lot would hold over 200 cars and we were 
immediately selling over 100 cars consistently every month. I moved out of my Beach Avenue apartment and moved on to the car lot. I would work 12 to 14 hour 
days and I loved what I did. I was making more money than God. God by the way is a Supreme court Judge who makes $340,000 plus a year. I was flying back to 
Alberta to see my son every 2nd weekend. We would stay at the Banff Springs Hotel. The Gold Floor. That is where the rich people stay. My son called it the Marshall 
floor. Then the unthinkable happened. Mr. Cortens came up with the bright idea that he could run the largest used car lot in Vancouver where you have to make 
$60,000 a month just to break even. The rent alone was $18,000 a month. He called the police and had me escorted off my lot and from my home. The police said 
this was a civil matter and I had to sue him.  

CAPTAIN ROBERT CORTENS 
69) Then the unthinkable happened. Air Canada pilot Robert Cortens stole my car lot and kicked me out on the  

street with $10 in my pocket. I took my blog off the internet as I did not want my past association with Fathers for Justice jeopardising my law suit against Robert 
Cortens. I believed in the Justice system at that time. I should have kept it up.  It was my only protection against a Corrupt and Abusive Canadian Justice system. 
After Air Canada Pilot Robert Cortens stole my car lot I opened up another lot with Ash Samifeld of Luxor Motors. 

ASH SAMIFELD OF LUXOR MOTOR CARS 
70) From 2013 to 2014 I made an agreement with Ash Samifeld to take over Luxor Motors in Burnaby. Luxor Motors was selling 10 cars a month at that time and Ash 

said he wanted out of the car business. Ash Samifeld agreed to lend me $200,000 and I would pay him $50,000 a year interest. I would take over 80% of his lot 
which would hold 100 cars. I also opened up a storage lot that would hold over 100 cars. We separated our business by calling each business Luxor A and Luxor B.  
Within 2 months I had over 200 cars in my inventory. After 8 months in business we were selling over 80 cars a month. Unfortunately after 8 months in business Ash 
Samifeld from Luxor Motors decided to steel the business that I created at Luxor Motors. Ash Samifeld cooking the books and holding back $70,000 of my money. 
Ash Samifeld then called a guy who he says is a member of the Hells Angels organisation. He told the Hells Angel guy that I owed him $50,000 and I was ripping him 
off. The Hells Angel guy came to visit me. He told me that if I was ripping Ash off that I would never work in this town again. I told the Hells Angel guy that Ash 
Samifeld was a liar and he owed me $70,000 and was ripping me off. The Hells Angel Guy told me to tell Ash to take the books to his accountant. When the 
accountant was done I asked Ash to show me what the accountant said. Ash refused to show me. I told the Hells Angel guy that Ash would not show me what his 
accountant said. The Hells Angel guy told me that’s what I get for going into business with Ash Samifeld. He laughed and told me to sue him. I now know why the 
Hells Angel guy laughed when he said I should sue him. Our Justice system is the biggest criminal organization in Canada. I grew up respecting Judges and Lawyers 
back in my day. I have no respect for the Justice System anymore. I trust the Hells Angel guy more than I trust the British Columbia Justice System. Maybe that is 
why Darrel Piecas the Speaker of the British Columbia House of commons says that the Hells Angels the Mafia have better leadership than the people of British 
Columbia do in the B.C. legislature. 

A SMART MAN 
71)  A very smart friend of mine gave me his analysis of my story. He says that my story is sad and eye opening. He says that it’s clear that modern societies have severe 

difficulties to render justice in an impartial way. After WWII, Capitalism has been trying to offer a model that would lead to human betterment of social condition. 
Communism has endeavored to propose a symmetrically opposed doctrine of human happiness. But are we better off in any of the two environments. He says from 
my account it is obvious that the Canadian Justice System is suffering the peculiarities of the capitalistic society. One goes to school and studies law just to be better 
off in life. The civic duty comes in as a secondary priority. Any case is looked that as a “business” and money is the main focus. Even if this may be tolerated in many 
cases but when the structure of the “family” is touched then social problems could multiply. My story deals with this crucial aspect as well. The end product of this 
distorted system is a psychologically disturbed child. Suffering the lack of parental love and living a continuous conflict within the family, “feeling insecure” is 
inflicted on the child with dire implications on society. A bad judge or lawyer doesn’t only hurt the family, but above all the child in other words he/ she destroys the 
future of the society. My campaign is vital to bring awareness but unfortunately my suffering will continue. A Justice system designed to make law people rich 
cannot render Justice and grant to the families, building blocks of the “society,” the opportunity to rear secure and efficient children. My money and time is wasted 
on some nonsense instead of serving for my child’s good diet and schooling. My friend was saddened by my story but found it somehow normal in the light of what I 
had said in my story. His recommendation. The most important asset of my life is my son. Find a way to spare spending money against the lawyers. Use the 
resources on my son. Invest in him. Maybe one day the family will be united. Who Knows? In the meantime your performance continues to be impressive. My 
compliments. 

CHRIS MARSHALL’S WISH 
72) My wish is that my story will influence our Government to make a change to the abusive Family Justice system. We are all people with hopes and dreams with love 

for our family. We are not cash registers for the legal society to extort from. The Judicial Code of Ethics states that Judges should expect to be constantly scrutinized 
by the public. Unfortunately the people in the legal industry have no sense of morals scruples or ethics. They would rather talk about parents like Andrew Berry who 
are pushed over the edge and kill their children.   

CHRIS MARSHALL’S REALITY 
My Family has been extorted by the Family Justice system of Canada for the last 16 years. I will continue to be extorted by our Justice system and I will probably go 
back to prison on September 17, 2019. I no longer fight for access to my son. He is 17 years old and has finished high school. He is moving here on July 15, 2019. I 
am now fighting for my life. Unfortunately nobody cares in Canada. I will probably be put back in prison as Canadians spend 2 billion dollars a year locking people 
up.  Thanks for reading my story and remember, YOUR JUDGES, YOUR LAWYERS, and YOUR FAMILY IS NEXT.                                                                         

DEAR NEW IMMIGRANTS OF CANADA 
73)  In 1995 the province of Quebec had a referendum on separating from Canada. The Yes side for separation had 49.42% of the vote. The No side for separation had 

50.58% percent of the vote. Canada almost separated. The separatists blamed the new immigrants for voting against them. It was common knowledge that it was 
the new immigrants to Canada who kept our great country together. I thank the new immigrants of Canada for voting for unity. Canadians live in the greatest multi 
culture country in the world. I would like to ask the new immigrants to Canada to join me in my campaign against an abusive Canadian Family Justice System that is 
made up of 80% white judges. That does not reflect the racial diversity of this great country we Canadians call home. Maybe that is the problem. Please support my 
cause and help me stop these bullies in our Justice System that are destroying Canadian Families.  

CONTACT INFORMATION 
74) My name is Chris Marshall and if you would like to support my crusade against an abuse Family Justice System you can contact me at 604 365 4717. My email 

address is chrismarshall8008@gmail.com. The Family Justice System of Canada is destroying Canadian lives so that lawyers can get rich. The Justice System is using 
our children as pawns for Judicial Extortion. My story is called afathersstory.ca and my stage July will be at my used car storage lot beside 333 Terminal Avenue in 
Vancouver. If the Family Justice System wants to put me in jail for the 7th time I want the people of Canada to know my story. I am not the only person going 
through this legal nightmare. Please join me at this location and help Canadians put an end to the abusive nightmare. The Family justice System creates 
hopelessness and despair and fuels the drug industry and creates homeless Canadians. I am a proud 4th generation Canadian and I need the support of the new 
immigrants to save our country from this abusive Family Justice System. I have a lawyer willing to take on Canada’s Family Justice System.  If my story touches your 
heart please make an E Transfer donation of $10 to my legal campaign to fight for all Canadians at Barker@Barkerlaw.ca. It is a Noble Cause. One gut can’t do it all. 
But I am trying                            
                                                                                   


